

BYLAWS

Proprietary and Confidential

RESTRICTION ON USE, PUBLICATION, OR DISCLOSURE OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION.

This document contains information that is proprietary and confidential to Front Range Woodturners. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means (electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise) without prior written permission from Front Range Woodturners. All copies of this document are the sole property of Front Range Woodturners and must be returned promptly upon request.

Front Range Woodturners P.O. Box 620605 Littleton, CO. 80162

www.frontrangewoodturners.org

Table of Contents

ARTICLE I — ORGANIZATION AND LOCATION	
ARTICLE II — OFFICES	3
ARTICLE III — RELATION OF CHAPTER TO THE CORPORATE ORGANIZATION	3
ARTICLE IV — PURPOSES	3
ARTICLE V — MEMBERSHIP FEES	4
ARTICLE VI — MEETINGS	4
ARTICLE VII — EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE	5
ARTICLE VIII — COMMITTEE CHAIRS	8
ARTICLE IX — ELECTIONS	10
Article X — Insurance	11
ARTICLE XI — FINANCIAL REVIEWS	12
ARTICLE XII — INDEBTEDNESS	12
ARTICLE XIII — DISCLAIMERS: FISCAL AND LEGAL	12
ARTICLE XIV — DISPOSITION OF ASSETS	13
ARTICLE XV — INDEMNIFICATION	
ARTICLE XVI — AMENDMENTS	13
ACCEPTANCE OF BYLAWS	13
REVISION TABLE	14

Article I — Organization and Location

The Front Range Woodturners was organized as a local chapter of the American Association of Woodturners on December 7, 1994. This Chapter primarily draws membership from the Colorado area from east of the Continental Divide, north of a line from Castle Rock through Limon, and south of a line from Boulder through Sterling, especially those cities, towns, and communities surrounding Denver, Colorado.

Hereinafter, Front Range Woodturners will be referred to as the "Chapter" or "FRW", and the American Association of Woodturners as "AAW".

Article II — Offices

The principal office of this Chapter shall be that of the currently elected President, as published in the FRW Newsletter and on-line at the FRW website.

The mailing address of this Chapter shall be that of the currently elected Secretary, as published in the FRW Newsletter and on-line at the FRW website.

Article III — Relation of Chapter to the Corporate Organization

The FRW shall be a chapter of the American Association of Woodturners (AAW), and shall support and participate in the activities of that organization. All officers of this Chapter agree to be members in good standing of the AAW. The Chapter will encourage all members to become affiliated with the AAW.

Members of FRW understand that the parent organization (AAW) will provide advice and counsel, as requested, while the nature and extent of the Chapter's activities are left to the Chapter's discretion. Woodturning demonstrations, a normal part of the activities of the Chapter, will be conducted solely at the discretion of Chapter Officers, and all direction relative to the demonstrations, including time, duration, nature, and safety, will be under their explicit direction and control.

Article IV — Purposes

FRW is committed to serving woodturners in the Denver Metropolitan area as follows:

- Providing a meeting place
- Sharing woodturning ideas and techniques
- Exchanging wood and other materials
- Sharing ideas about tools and related materials
- Informing members about activities of interest to woodturning
- Promoting woodturning as an art form and craft

The Chapter joins with AAW in its dedication to provide education, information, and organization to those interested in woodturning.

Article V — **Membership Fees**

Annual membership fees will be established by a simple majority vote of members in good standing present at a regularly scheduled meeting. Advance notice of the vote and vote results will be announced in the newsletter. It is recommended that changes to membership fee amounts be announced no later than the October meeting because so many members pay their dues in advance.

Membership fees are due in January of each year. Fees for members joining in July through December will be prorated at the rate of one-half (½) the annual fee for membership.

Members paying 100% of the next year's fee during October to December shall be considered to have paid for the remainder of the current year and the next year. Following are the levels of membership fees:

- General membership Fee paid for an individual.
- Family membership Fee paid for an individual, spouse, and children (both juvenile and adult).
- Student membership Fee paid by a full-time student.
- Co-Club Membership FRW has a reciprocal membership agreement with the Rocky Mountain Woodturners and Pikes Peak Woodturners clubs. A member in good standing of FRW, RMWT, or PP may join one or both of the reciprocal clubs for 1/2 the annual member rate. This agreement is based on your primary or "home" club as the club closest to where you live or most often attend.
- Honorary or complimentary membership Free to designated individuals who have provided exemplary support to FRW.

This fee does not cover membership in the parent organization, American Association of Woodturners. AAW membership is paid separately and directly to the AAW.

Article VI — Meetings

FRW will meet monthly at a time and place designated by the Executive Committee and announced in the newsletter or website. Additional meetings may be held as announced in the newsletter or website.

"Executive Committee quorum" is defined as at least three Officers and a majority vote of the attending committee chairs at a quarterly Board meeting. "General member quorum" is defined as any number of members in good standing at a general meeting.

Article VII— Executive Committee

The FRW governing body is the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee is comprised of the Chapter Officers ("Officers") and the Committee Chairs.

See section "Chapter Officers" for a description of the responsibilities of the Officers. See the Addendum for a description of the responsibilities of the Committee Chairs.

The Executive Committee shall meet regularly, as scheduled by the President, to conduct and oversee planning and other business. All members in good standing are eligible to attend meetings, but only members of the Executive Committee are eligible to cast votes.

The President is empowered to create temporary leadership positions deemed necessary, with such temporary positions not considered part of the Executive Committee. The President, with the advice and consent of the Executive Committee, may appoint such positions for a definitive term to be determined by the President to serve solely at the discretion of the President. The President is empowered to remove, replace, and/or terminate temporary positions without notice to or discussion by the membership or the Executive Committee.

Chapter Officers

The Officers of this Chapter shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. The Officers must be FRW and AAW members in good standing (both memberships are required). Officers must be elected through the election process described in section "Article VIII — Elections".

No person may fill more than one Officer position at a time (each Officer position must be filled by a different individual); however, a single person may be an Officer and also fill one or more Committee Chair position.

President. The President shall be the principal executive officer. The duties of the President include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Supervise and control the business and operation of FRW.
- Call or cause to be scheduled meetings of the Executive Committee and/or general membership.
- Preside or delegate to someone to preside at meetings.
- Appoint committees and/or temporary positions with the approval of the Executive Committee.
- Act as ex-officio a member of all committees, but may appoint another Executive Committee member as a stand-in.
- In general, perform all duties incident to the office of President.

Vice President. The duties of the Vice President include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Perform the duties of the President in the absence of the President or at the President's request, or in the event of the President's inability to serve, or refusal to perform his duties. When so acting, the Vice President shall assume the responsibilities, duties, and powers of the President and shall be subject to all the restrictions on the President cited in these Bylaws.
- Schedule and manage demonstrations and special programs for each general meeting.
- Negotiate demonstration fees and logistical details to support demonstrations and special programs.
- Coordinate programs with other clubs in the area to minimize FRW expenses.
- In general, perform all duties incident to the office of Vice President and any other duties as may be assigned by the President.

Secretary. The duties of Secretary include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Keep minutes of Executive Committee and Officer meetings and of those portions of regular meetings during which official business is conducted, and distribute same to Executive Committee members through the Repository (currently Google Drive).
- Upload minutes to the Repository.
- Ensure notices are communicated to members as required by these Bylaws.
- Maintain the official records including, but not limited to, a current copy of the Bylaws, Articles of Incorporation (if any), and any other legal documents.
- Perform the duties of the Newsletter Editor in the absence of a separate Newsletter Editor.
- Ensure the current version of the FRW Bylaws, and any amendments thereto, are filed with the AAW.
- Run Elections, in coordination with the Executive Committee and per the procedure described in section "Article VIII — Elections".
- In general, perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and any other duties as may be assigned by the President.
- Responsible for managing and maintaining the Repository (currently Google Drive).
 Committee Chairs are responsible for maintaining their respective documents within the repository.

Treasurer. The duties of Treasurer include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Collect membership fees and other monies, and pay any debts incurred by the Chapter out of Chapter funds.
- Maintain banking and funds accounts as agreed by the Executive Committee.

- Maintain current and accurate records of all FRW receipts, expenditures, monies and tangible assets. Tangible assets include, but are not limited to, tools, machinery, audiovisual equipment, and library resources. Asset lists will identify item, serial numbers (if any), dates of purchase, purchase and installation costs, and estimated replacement costs, as appropriate. These records shall be kept current and stored in the Repository.
- Lead the budget formulation and maintenance process. Track the expenses for each area incurred to support FRW activities.
- Provide financial reports to the Executive Committee that track income, expenses, and assets, including a final report for the year-end transfer to the new Executive Committee. Report financial status to the general membership, as appropriate.
- Provide copies of all financial records, including bank statements, to the repository for inclusion in the Chapter's permanent records.
- Support periodic reviews of the financial reports on an annual basis and as requested by the Executive Committee.
- Maintain the official financial records including, but not limited to, bank account statements. Current copies of said records shall also be kept in the Repository.
- In general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as may be assigned by the President.

Term of Office

Each Executive Committee member shall hold office for one calendar year, beginning on January 1. No incoming Executive Committee member may incur expenses against the budget before their office begins without the express prior permission of the Executive Committee. Any Executive Committee member leaving a position is responsible for transference of knowledge, materials, legal documents, etc., to the new position holder before January 1, and is responsible for supporting the new position holder during the first January meeting.

Removal

Any Executive Committee member may be removed when it is deemed by the general membership to be in the best interests of the Chapter. Removal is accomplished by a simple majority vote by a general meeting quorum. Advance notice of the vote and vote results will be announced in the newsletter.

Vacancies

A vacancy in an Executive Committee position may be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by a majority vote of the Officers. The person filling the vacancy must satisfy all requirements described in these bylaws.

Article VIII — Committee Chairs

Following are the positions and responsibilities currently listed as the Committee Chairs. These positions will be filled during the general election process. The Committee Chairs and the Officers will comprise the Executive Committee. In addition to the specific duties listed, each Committee Chair will assist the Treasurer in maintaining records as they pertain to their committee (e.g., expense and asset records).

The Executive Committee may modify these positions as needed without impacting the remainder of the Bylaws.

FRW will pay for half of the yearly membership dues for Committee Chairs if they request it. This offer is to show appreciation for the work being done by the Chairs on behalf of the club. This offer is not valid for Officers. This offer may be rescinded by the current Board if in the best interest of the budget.

President Emeritus (Appointed position)

The immediate past President will serve in capacity as the President Emeritus to the newly elected President. This role is specifically designed to be an advisor to the current President and board. This position will recommend courses of action, provide input, and serve as general counsel and guide to the board. This position will have all voting rights, the same as any existing board position. This position will report directly to the Executive Officers with a specific dotted line to the current President.

Coffee Chair

Set up and clean up of coffee and other refreshments for the general meetings and other events, as appropriate.

Communication Chair

This position will serve as the Communication Chair for the club. This position is derived by splitting the current Newsletter Editor /Communications Liaison into two separate positions. The Newsletter Editor position will remain on the board and serve as the official Newsletter Editor for the club.

The other communications activities currently done by the Newsletter Editor will transition to the Communications Chair. These activities can include: mass emailing of items for sale, general email communication of club business, and other various notifications. This position will work with the Newsletter Editor on specific separation of duties and general responsibilities.

Club Historian

This position will be an elected board position and will follow the current nomination, acceptance and voting method of electing board members. This position will be responsible for maintaining membership join dates, current and past rosters, and any other club business from a historical perspective. This position will serve as a chair

position and hold all voting rights as current board members. This position will work with the membership chair, the videographer, the photographer and any other club members to create an archive of past, present and future club activities, members, etc. This position will also work with the board on the creation of a dedicated "hall of fame" list, plaque, etc.

Group Buy Chair

Coordinate group purchases for FRW members in good standing. Responsibilities include liaison with vendors, maintenance of member lists for vendors, and distributing purchases to buyers.

Internet Chair / Webmaster

Maintain the content, domain license, and hosting of the FRW website. Post electronic copies of the newsletter and other notices each month, and keep information and content current and relevant to the Chapter.

Ladies of the Lathe Chair

The Ladies of the Lathe Chair is responsible for promoting the art of woodturning for women through venues such as, but not limited to, periodic mentoring workshops and a female presence. The Chair is jointly responsible for, and is to share, the tools, machinery, and maintenance of FRW equipment with the other mentoring and outreach programs of FRW.

Librarian

Manage and maintain reference and educational materials owned by the FRW and provide to members for checkout. Ensure that only members in good standing can check out materials. Provide security of the materials and ensure that the materials are returned in good condition. Acquire additional materials within budgetary constraints, and solicit donations to the library. Coordinate with the FRW Officers to maintain the currency of asset listings.

Membership Chair

The Membership Chair is responsible for maintaining the active membership list, collecting membership dues, printing name badges, introducing new members to the club and contacting members with expiring memberships. Current membership lists will be distributed monthly to the officers and other chair positions, and uploaded to the Repository.

Mentoring Chair

Schedule and coordinate mentoring and training sessions.

Newsletter Editor

If the Secretary does not fulfill this position, the Newsletter Editor will create and publish a newsletter to the membership on a monthly basis, and at such other times as directed by the President, announcing upcoming events, meeting results, and other

information of interest to members. Distribution shall include all members in good standing, the AAW office, and such others as the President directs. Provide the newsletter in electronic format to the Internet Chair to be posted to the FRW website.

Pete Holtus Educational Opportunity Grant Chair

The PHEOG Chair is responsible for carrying out the FRW grant program as outlined in and pursuant to the Rules, Responsibilities, and Guidelines governing the PHEOG, the Application, and the Application Rules formulated by committee and approved of by the 2012 Executive Board. Future modifications to the 2012 documentations are possible. Modifications require Executive Board approval.

Photography Chair

Responsible for photographing gallery items brought to the monthly meetings. Tally results of the monthly Turning Challenge. Back up the Videographer at monthly meetings if needed. Upload gallery photos after each monthly meeting to the repository.

Publicity Chair

Advertise, support, and further the presence and image of the Chapter to the general public.

Shop Tour Chair

Schedule and coordinate shop tours.

Videographer

Record general meetings and demonstrations and provide these recordings to the Librarian for inclusion in the library. Acquire, maintain, and secure all FRW-owned electronic equipment, confirming that it is in good condition and set up for meetings. Expend budget resources as necessary to support these responsibilities. Coordinate with FRW Officers to maintain the electronic asset listings.

Wood Raffle Chair

Run the raffles during general meetings and other events. Acquire wood and other materials for the raffles.

Youth Chair

The Youth Chair is responsible for promoting the art of woodturning for youth through venues such as, but not limited to, periodic mentoring workshops. The Chair is jointly responsible for, and is to share, the tools, machinery, and maintenance of FRW equipment with the other mentoring and outreach programs of FRW.

Article IX — Elections

Elections for the Officers and other Executive Committee members shall be held at least once per year.

Qualifications

Candidates must be FRW members in good standing at the time of nomination and must maintain membership through the term of the position.

Candidates for Officer positions must also be AAW members in good standing and must maintain AAW membership through the term of the position.

Candidates must be willing to perform all relevant duties for the respective position described in these Bylaws.

Election Timeline

The timeline below is a guide to drive the annual election process.

September/October

- During the October general meeting, requests for nominations are accepted. Members may nominate other members or themselves.
- The Secretary records nominations. During and after the meeting, the Secretary
 confirms with each nominee that he/she is willing to serve in the position for which
 nominated.

November

- The Secretary creates and publishes the ballots with the November issue of the FRW
 newsletter. The Secretary also provides paper ballots at the November general meeting.
 The ballots specify that a single vote may be cast for each position and include a date by
 which the Secretary must receive mailed ballots. Members are on the honor system to
 vote only once.
- The Secretary provides a secure, anonymous method to gather paper ballots in person at the November general meeting, and collects the mailed ballots by the posted deadline.
- After the mail-in deadline, the Secretary and one other person appointed by the President counts the votes for each position, with the nominee gaining the most votes becoming the electee. The Secretary provides the list of electees to the President.

December

The President announces the electees at the December Holiday party.

Article X — Insurance

As a chapter of AAW, FRW will use insurance available through and required by AAW. FRW shall acquire any additional insurance that is determined by the Officers to be required for adequate protection.

The actual coverage is determined by the insurance policy, though by default, all demonstrators from FRW must be members in good standing to be covered by insurance. Demonstrators who are not members of FRW must be members in good standing of AAW or covered for liability by an adequate insurance policy.

Article XI — Financial Reviews

Annual Review

At least annually, the Officers will perform the following reviews:

- Review of the financial records to ensure compliance with these Bylaws. The results of this review will be documented as an FRW record. The Officers may also direct a more formal audit, as appropriate.
- Review asset listings to ensure these listings are being maintained by the respective Committee Chair.

Record Availability

The books and records of FRW shall be made reasonably available to members and other interested parties, in compliance with pertinent laws and regulations.

Article XII — Indebtedness

All functions of FRW are on a cash basis. FRW may not incur any debt through the actions of its Executive Committee or any of its members.

Article XIII — Disclaimers: Fiscal and Legal

American Association of Woodturners, Inc.

The American Association of Woodturners, Inc., (AAW) specifically disassociates itself from any debts, obligations or encumbrances of FRW. The Corporate Board of Directors of AAW is not responsible for the debts nor shares in the profits of FRW. AAW does not shoulder any legal liability for accidents that occur during events of any kind sponsored or not sponsored by FRW.

Front Range Woodturners

Front Range Woodturners (FRW) specifically disassociates itself from any debts, obligations or encumbrances of the American Association of Woodturners (AAW). The Executive Committee of the FRW is not responsible for the debts nor shares in the profits of AAW. The FRW does not shoulder any legal liability for accidents that occur during events of any kind sponsored or not sponsored by AAW.

Article XIV — Disposition of Assets

In the case of dissolution of FRW, the Chapter's assets will be distributed as determined by the then-current Executive Committee in compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Article XV — Indemnification

The FRW Executive Committee may indemnify any Officer or member who is a party or is threatened to be a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative, other than an action by or in the right of the FRW by reason of the fact that the individual is or was an officer, employee, member or agent of FRW or was serving at the request of FRW against expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the individual in connection with such action, suit, or proceeding if the individual acted in good faith and in a manner the individual reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of FRW and with respect to any criminal proceedings, if the individual had no reasonable cause to believe that the conduct was unlawful.

Article XVI — Amendments

These Bylaws may be amended or repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by a simple majority vote by a general meeting quorum. Copies of amendments to these Bylaws must be filed with the National Office of AAW.

Acceptance of Bylaws

The FRW Bylaws were adopted by the Front Range Woodturners, Denver, Colorado, a local chapter of the American Association of Woodturners, Inc., as follows:

Originally composed December 7, 1994

Amended September 10, 1996, and June 1, 2002

Amended with an effective date of January 6, 2009.

Amended with an effective date of September 5, 2017.

Amended with an effective date of October 22, 2020

President: Ed 'Sonny' Jones
 Vice President: Don Prorak
 Secretary: Patrick Crumpton
 Treasurer: Larry Abrams

Revision Table

DATE	REVISION	COMMENTS	BY
Dec 7, 1994	1.0	Originally composed	Andy Zartman
Sept 10, 1996	1.1	Amended	
June 1, 2002	1.2	Amended	
Jan 6, 2009	1.3	Amended	
July 10, 2012	1.4	Amended. Add LOTL, PHEOG, Youth Chair responsibilities	
Jan 15, 2017	2.0	Master Bylaws template recreated, revision table added.	Pat Scott
Sept 5, 2017	2.0	Updated Bylaws were accepted by a general meeting quorum.	Pat Scott
Oct 22, 2020	<u>2.1</u>	Added new chair descriptions for: President Emeritus, Club	Pat Scott
		<u>Historian, and Communications Chair.</u>	